
Innovations Academy Board Meeting: December 13, 2016 @ 6:00 pm 
Meeting location(s) 
Innovations Academy 
10380 Spring Canyon Road 
San Diego, CA 92131 

5519 McMillan Street  
Oakland, CA 94618  

Public call in number 641-715-0861* 

Access code 151642 

*Members of the public need not state their names when entering the conference call.  Call-in number is provided as 
a convenience to the public. 
 
Board Attendance 
Danielle 
Stratchman 
 

Nathan 
Cooper 

Tony 
Spitzberg 

     

 
Others in Attendance 
Christine 
Kuglen 
 

Delano Jones      

 
Agenda 

Topic Minutes 
Ø Call to order / roll call  
Ø Approval of current agenda Vote:  

 
Ø Approval of prior month meeting minutes Vote: 

 
Ø Public comments (3 mins per person)  
Ø Board applicant introductions  
Ø Reports  

o Teacher briefing (Tony) Discussion:  
o Financial update (Delano) 

 
 

o Director update (Christine) 
ü Full time & Part time 

capacity/enrollment 
ü LCAP implementation 
ü School relocation 

Item – Director Update 
Discussion:  

Ø Action items  
 

o Approve new board members 

o LCAP goal review 

o Approve 1st interim financials 

o Approve annual financial audit—draft 
attached, but Auditors will provide final 
copy to board 

o P-1 Attendance reports due to SDUSD—

Item - Approve new board members 
Discussion: 
Vote: 
 
Item – LCAP goal review 
Discussion: 
 
Item – Approve 1st interim financials 
Discussion: 
Vote:  



Topic Minutes 
N/A 

o Approve revised Working Budget (revised 
based on actual enrollment) 

 

 
 

 
Item – Approve annual financial audit 
Discussion: 
Vote:  
 
Item – P-1 Attendance reports due to SDUSD 
Discussion: 
Vote:  
 
Item – Approve revised Working Budget (revised based 
on actual enrollment) 
Discussion 
Vote:  
 
 

Ø Discussion items  
o IA Board recruitment (All) 
o Potential new board members 
o New policy review (permanent discussion 

item) 
 

o Item – IA Board recruitment (All) 
Discussion:  
 

o Potential new board members 
Discussion: 

 
 

o Tasks for next meeting - Delano to adjust calendar for new meeting 
schedule. 

 
Ø Next board meeting  

o Confirm date of next meeting  
o Identify agenda items for next meeting  

Meeting adjourned   
 

The foregoing minutes were approved by the Board 
of Directors of Innovations Academy on _________. 

 
_________________________________________ 

       Secretary 



Please contact Innovations Academy Board @ Board@InnovationsAcademy.org if you require special assistance or 
a listening device to attend the Board Meeting.  Requests must be made 48 hours in advance. 
 

1. TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS. Members of the Board of Directors may participate in teleconference 
meetings so long as all of the following requirements in the Brown Act are complied with: 

• At a minimum, a quorum of the members of the Board of Directors shall participate in the 
teleconference meeting from locations within the boundaries of the State of California; 

• All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call;  

• If the Board of Directors elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all teleconference  
locations with each teleconference location being identified in the notice and agenda of the  
meeting;  

• All locations where a member of the Board of Directors constituting the quorum participates in a  
meeting via teleconference must be fully accessible to members of the public and shall be listed on  
the agenda;  

• Members of the public must be able to hear what is said during the meeting and shall be provided  
with an opportunity to address the Board of Directors directly at each teleconference location;  
and  

• The agenda shall indicate that members of the public attending a meeting conducted via  
teleconference need not give their name when entering the conference call.  

• The Brown Act prohibits requiring members of the public, to provide their names as a condition of 
attendance at the meeting; however, those wishing to speak may be required to identify themselves.  

 

 



Innovations Academy Board Meeting: October 4, 2016 @ 6:00 pm 

Meeting location(s) 
Innovations Academy 
10380 Spring Canyon Road 
San Diego, CA 92131 

5519 McMillan Street  
Oakland, CA 94618  

Public call in number 605-562-3140* 

Access code 151642 

*Members of the public need not state their names when entering the conference call.  Call-in number is provided as 
a convenience to the public. 
 
Board Attendance 
Danielle 
Stratchman 
 

Nathan 
Cooper 

Tony 
Spitzberg 

     

 
Others in Attendance 
Christine 
Kuglen 
 

      

 
Agenda 

Topic Minutes 
Ø Call to order / roll call 6:13 
Ø Approval of current agenda Vote: Nathan moves to approve current agenda, Tony 

seconds. All in favor. 
 

Ø Approval of prior month meeting minutes Vote: Nathan moves to approve current agenda, Tony 
seconds. All in favor. 
 

Ø Public comments (3 mins per person)  
Ø Reports  

o Teacher briefing (Tony) Discussion: Sent out call for new teacher representative. 
o Financial update (Delano) 

 
 

o Director update (Christine) 
ü Full time & Part time 

capacity/enrollment 
ü LCAP implementation 
ü School relocation 

Item – Director Update 
Discussion: One teacher leaving school. Efforts to hire a 
replacement taking place. 

Ø Action items  
o Review biennial Conflict of Interest Code 

(even years) 
o Submit Biennial Review Reply Form (due 

10/1 of even years) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item - Review biennial Conflict of Interest Code (even 
years) 
Discussion: Moving to have Christine draft reply form 
regarding conflict of interest code. 
Vote: Nathan moved, Danielle seconded, all in favor 
Item - Submit Biennial Review Reply Form (due 10/1 of 
even years) 
Discussion: 



Topic Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
o Approve amended Conflict of Interest 

Code (if necessary based on prior review 
of code) 

o Submit amended Conflict of Interest Code 
(due 11/15 of even years) 

 
 

Vote: 
 
 
 
 
Item - Approve amended Conflict of Interest Code (if 
necessary based on prior review of code) 
Discussion: Chose to keep. 
Vote: 
 
Item - Submit amended Conflict of Interest Code (due 
11/15 of even years) 
Discussion: 
Vote: 
 
 

Ø Discussion items  
o IA Board recruitment (All) 
o Potential new board members 
o New policy review (permanent discussion 

item) 
 

o Item – IA Board recruitment (All) 
Discussion: Discussed as part of retreat topics. 
 

o Potential new board members 
Discussion: 

 
 

o Tasks for next meeting - Delano to adjust calendar for new meeting 
schedule. 

- Teacher position on board change. 
Ø Next board meeting  

o Confirm date of next meeting o Danielle requesting 12/13 as amended meeting 
date. 

o Identify agenda items for next meeting  
Meeting adjourned  6:40pm 

 
The foregoing minutes were approved by the Board 
of Directors of Innovations Academy on _________. 

 
_________________________________________ 

       Secretary 



Please contact Innovations Academy Board @ Board@InnovationsAcademy.org if you require special assistance or 
a listening device to attend the Board Meeting.  Requests must be made 48 hours in advance. 
 

1. TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS. Members of the Board of Directors may participate in teleconference 
meetings so long as all of the following requirements in the Brown Act are complied with: 

• At a minimum, a quorum of the members of the Board of Directors shall participate in the 
teleconference meeting from locations within the boundaries of the State of California; 

• All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call;  

• If the Board of Directors elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all teleconference  
locations with each teleconference location being identified in the notice and agenda of the  
meeting;  

• All locations where a member of the Board of Directors constituting the quorum participates in a  
meeting via teleconference must be fully accessible to members of the public and shall be listed on  
the agenda;  

• Members of the public must be able to hear what is said during the meeting and shall be provided  
with an opportunity to address the Board of Directors directly at each teleconference location;  
and  

• The agenda shall indicate that members of the public attending a meeting conducted via  
teleconference need not give their name when entering the conference call.  

• The Brown Act prohibits requiring members of the public, to provide their names as a condition of 
attendance at the meeting; however, those wishing to speak may be required to identify themselves.  

 

	



C
h

a
rte

r S
ch

o
o

l N
a

m
e

:                           
In

n
o

v
a

tio
n

s A
ca

d
e

m
y

F
irst In

te
rim

 R
e

p
o

rt
A

u
th

o
rizin

g
 A

g
e

n
cy

:
S

a
n

 D
ie

g
o

 U
n

ifie
d

 S
ch

o
o

l D
istrict

C
D

S
#

 3
7

-6
8

3
3

8
-

1
1

8
0

8
3

F
Y

 2
0

1
6

-2
0

1
7

F
in

a
n

cia
l A

cco
u

n
tin

g
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n

t

C
o

n
ta

ct n
a

m
e

:
C

h
ristin

e
 K

u
g

le
n

F
o

r th
e

 P
e

rio
d

 Ju
ly

 1
 2

0
1

6
 th

ro
u

g
h

 O
cto

b
e

r 3
1

, 2
0

1
6

C
h

a
rte

r S
ch

o
o

ls A
cco

u
n

tin
g

 O
ffice

E
-m

a
il a

n
d

 p
h

o
n

e
 #

:
ch

ristin
e

@
in

n
o

v
a

tio
n

sa
ca

d
e

m
y
.o

rg
/(8

5
8

) 2
7

1
-1

4
1

4
A

ccru
a

l B
a

sis
A

u
th

o
rizin

g
 A

g
e

n
cy

 C
o

n
ta

ct:
A

n
n

a
 D

a
y
 (a

d
a

y
1

@
sa

n
d

in
e

t)

  
A

u
th

o
rizin

g
 A

g
e

n
cy

 C
o

n
ta

ct:
D

e
b

ra
 G

la
n

z (d
g

la
n

z@
sa

n
d

i.n
e

t)

a
b

c
d

a + c = e
b + d = f

the > of e or f = g
h

O
b

je
ct C

o
d

e
 U

n
re

stricte
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

U
n

re
stricte

d
 

A
ctu

a
ls th

ro
u

g
h

 

1
0

/3
1

/1
5

 R
e

stricte
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

stricte
d

 A
ctu

a
ls 

th
ro

u
g

h
 1

0
/3

1
/1

5
T

o
ta

l B
u

d
g

e
t

T
o

ta
l A

ctu
a

ls 

th
ro

u
g

h
 1

0
/3

1
/1

5

P
ro

je
cte

d
 E

F
B

/N
P

 

(H
ig

h
e

r o
f B

u
d

g
e

t o
r 

A
ctu

a
l)

B
u

d
g

e
t to

 

P
ro

je
cte

d
 E

F
B

/N
P

 

D
iffe

re
n

ce
s

A
. R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
  (8

0
0

0
-8

7
9

9
)

1
. Lo

ca
l C

o
n

tro
l F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

o
rm

u
la

 (LC
F

F
) S

o
u

rce
s - (8

0
1

1
-8

0
9

7
)

LC
F

F
 S

ta
te

 A
id

 - C
u

rre
n

t Y
e

a
r (C

Y
) (Res 0000)

8
0

1
1

1
,0

1
2

,8
6

9
             

2
4

4
,3

9
0

                
1

,0
1

2
,8

6
9

             
2

4
4

,3
9

0
               

1
,0

1
2

,8
6

9
                 

-
                            

E
d

u
ca

tio
n

 P
ro

te
ctio

n
 A

cco
u

n
t S

ta
te

 A
id

 (E
P

A
) - C

Y (Res 1400)
8

0
1

2
3

8
3

,5
8

2
                

2
9

,9
6

4
                  

3
8

3
,5

8
2

                
2

9
,9

6
4

                 
3

8
3

,5
8

2
                     

-
                            

S
ta

te
 A

id
 - P

rio
r Y

e
a

rs (LCFF State Aid and EPA) (Res 0000 and Res 1400)
8

0
1

9
1

,7
3

5
,2

2
3

             
4

4
2

,7
9

2
                

1
,7

3
5

,2
2

3
             

4
4

2
,7

9
2

               
1

,7
3

5
,2

2
3

                 
-

                            

T
ra

n
sfe

rs to
 C

h
a

rte
r S

ch
o

o
ls In

 Lie
u

 o
f P

ro
p

e
rty

 T
a

xe
s - C

Y
 &

 P
Y

 (R
e

s 0
0

0
0

)
8

0
9

6
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

O
th

e
r LC

F
F

 T
ra

n
sfe

rs
8

0
9

1
, 8

0
9

7
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

T
o

ta
l, LC

F
F

 S
o

u
rce

s 
3

,1
3

1
,6

7
4

             
7

1
7

,1
4

6
                

-
                             

-
                             

3
,1

3
1

,6
7

4
             

7
1

7
,1

4
6

               
3

,1
3

1
,6

7
4

                 
-

                            

2
. O

th
e

r S
ta

te
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s (8

3
0

0
-8

5
9

9
)

S
ta

te
 S

p
e

cia
l E

d
u

ca
tio

n
 (R

e
s 6

5
0

0
)

8
7

9
2

2
0

6
,0

4
0

                
5

0
,6

4
6

                  
2

0
6

,0
4

0
                

5
0

,6
4

6
                 

2
0

6
,0

4
0

                     
-

                            

S
ta

te
 S

p
e

cia
l E

d
u

ca
tio

n
 M

e
n

ta
l H

e
a

lth
 S

e
rv

ice
s (R

e
s 6

5
1

2
)

8
5

9
0

-
                             

-
                            

-
                                 

-
                            

M
a

n
d

a
te

 B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t (R
e

s 0
0

0
0

)
8

5
5

0
5

,7
1

2
                    

5
,7

1
2

                    
-

                            
5

,7
1

2
                         

-
                            

A
fte

r S
ch

o
o

l E
d

u
ca

tio
n

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 (A

S
E

S
) (R

e
s 6

0
1

0
)

8
6

7
7

, 8
5

9
0

-
                             

-
                            

-
                                 

-
                            

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

re
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

 (R
e

s 7
4

0
5

)
8

5
9

0
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

C
h

a
rte

r S
ch

o
o

l F
a

cility
 G

ra
n

t P
ro

g
ra

m
 (S

B
 7

4
0

) (R
e

s 6
0

3
0

)
8

5
9

0
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

Lo
tte

ry
, U

n
re

stricte
d

 (R
e

s 1
1

0
0

)
8

5
6

0
5

7
,1

2
0

                  
5

7
,1

2
0

                  
-

                            
5

7
,1

2
0

                       
-

                            

Lo
tte

ry
, In

stru
ctio

n
a

l M
a

te
ria

ls - P
ro

p
 2

0
 R

e
stricte

d
 (R

e
s 6

3
0

0
)

8
5

6
0

1
6

,7
2

8
                  

1
6

,7
2

8
                  

-
                            

1
6

,7
2

8
                       

-
                            

P
ro

p
o

sitio
n

 3
9

 - C
a

lifo
rn

ia
 C

le
a

n
 E

n
e

rg
y
 Jo

b
s A

ct (R
e

s 6
2

3
0

)
8

5
9

0
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

O
th

e
r S

ta
te

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s (All other resources not reported separately)

8
3

0
0

-8
5

9
9

8
4

,4
5

6
                  

1
,4

1
1

                    
1

,0
8

0
                    

8
4

,4
5

6
                  

2
,4

9
1

                   
8

4
,4

5
6

                       
-

                            

T
o

ta
l - O

th
e

r S
ta

te
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s 

1
4

7
,2

8
8

                
1

,4
1

1
                    

2
2

2
,7

6
8

                
5

1
,7

2
6

                  
3

7
0

,0
5

6
                

5
3

,1
3

7
                 

3
7

0
,0

5
6

                     
-

                            

3
. F

e
d

e
ra

l R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s (8

1
0

0
-8

2
9

9
)

N
C

LB
, T

itle
 I, P

a
rt A

, B
a

sic G
ra

n
ts Lo

w
-In

co
m

e
 a

n
d

 N
e

g
le

cte
d

 (R
e

s 3
0

1
0

)
8

2
9

0
3

5
,1

4
4

                  
6

,8
2

7
                    

3
5

,1
4

4
                  

6
,8

2
7

                   
3

5
,1

4
4

                       
-

                            

N
C

LB
: T

itle
 II, P

a
rt A

, Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 T

e
a

ch
e

r Q
u

a
lity

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 (R

e
s 4

0
3

5
)

8
2

9
0

7
0

0
                        

7
0

0
                        

-
                            

7
0

0
                            

-
                            

N
C

LB
: T

itle
 III, Lim

ite
d

 E
n

g
lish

 P
ro

ficie
n

t S
tu

d
e

n
t P

ro
g

ra
m

 (R
e

s 4
2

0
3

)
8

2
9

0
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

N
C

LB
: T

itle
 III, Im

m
ig

ra
n

t S
tu

d
e

n
t P

ro
g

ra
m

 (R
e

s 4
2

0
1

)
8

2
9

0
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

N
C

LB
: T

itle
 V

, P
a

rt B
, P

u
b

lic C
h

a
rte

r S
ch

o
o

ls G
ra

n
t P

ro
g

ra
m

 (R
e

s 4
6

1
0

)
8

2
9

0
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

F
e

d
 S

p
 E

d
, ID

E
A

 B
a

sic Lo
ca

l A
ssista

n
ce

 E
n

title
m

e
n

t, P
a

rt B
, S

e
c 6

1
1

 (R
e

s 3
3

1
0

)
8

1
8

1
5

1
,0

0
0

                  
5

1
,0

0
0

                  
-

                            
5

1
,0

0
0

                       
-

                            

F
e

d
 S

p
 E

d
, ID

E
A

 M
e

n
ta

l H
e

a
lth

 A
llo

ca
tio

n
 P

la
n

, P
a

rt B
, S

e
c 6

1
1

 (R
e

s 3
3

2
7

)
8

1
8

2
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

2
1

st C
e

n
tu

ry
 Le

a
rn

in
g

 C
o

m
m

u
n

itie
s (R

e
s 4

1
2

4
)

8
2

9
0

-
                             

-
                            

-
                                 

-
                            

C
h

ild
 N

u
tritio

n
 - F

e
d

e
ra

l  (N
S

LP
) (R

e
s 5

3
1

0
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
rs)

8
2

2
0

-
                             

-
                            

-
                                 

-
                            

S
ta

te
 C

h
. S

ch
o

o
l F

a
c. In

ce
n

tiv
e

 G
ra

n
ts P

ro
g

.(R
e

s w
ith

in
 ra

n
g

e
 5

8
0

0
-5

8
9

9
)

8
2

9
0

-
                             

-
                            

-
                                 

-
                            

F
e

d
e

ra
l Im

p
a

ct A
id

 - S
u

rv
e

y
 C

a
rd

s - M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 a
n

d
 O

p
e

ra
tio

n
s (R

e
s 0

0
0

0
)

8
1

1
0

-
                             

-
                            

-
                                 

-
                            

O
th

e
r F

e
d

e
ra

l R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s (All other resources not reported separately)

8
1

0
0

-8
2

9
9

9
2

0
                        

-
                             

9
2

0
                       

9
2

0
                            

(9
2

0
)

                      

T
o

ta
l - F

e
d

e
ra

l R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s 

-
                             

-
                             

8
6

,8
4

4
                  

7
,7

4
7

                    
8

6
,8

4
4

                  
7

,7
4

7
                   

8
7

,7
6

4
                       

(9
2

0
)

                      

4
. Lo

ca
l R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 (8

6
0

0
-8

7
9

9
)

A
ll Lo

ca
l R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s 

8
6

0
0

-8
7

9
9

1
9

,0
0

0
                  

3
7

,8
4

1
                  

1
9

,0
0

0
                  

3
7

,8
4

1
                 

3
7

,8
4

1
                       

(1
8

,8
4

1
)

                

T
o

ta
l - Lo

ca
l R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s 

1
9

,0
0

0
                  

3
7

,8
4

1
                  

-
                             

-
                             

1
9

,0
0

0
                  

3
7

,8
4

1
                 

3
7

,8
4

1
                       

(1
8

,8
4

1
)

                

5
. T

O
T

A
L R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
 

3
,2

9
7

,9
6

2
             

7
5

6
,3

9
8

                
3

0
9

,6
1

2
                

5
9

,4
7

3
                  

3
,6

0
7

,5
7

4
             

8
1

5
,8

7
1

               
3

,6
2

7
,3

3
5

                 
(1

9
,7

6
1

)
                

B
. E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S

 A
N

D
 O

T
H

E
R

 O
U

T
G

O
 (1

0
0

0
-7

4
9

9
)

1
. C

e
rtifica

te
d

 S
a

la
rie

s 

C
e

rtifica
te

d
 T

e
a

ch
e

rs' S
a

la
rie

s 
1

1
0

0
8

5
7

,0
0

0
                

3
0

1
,4

3
6

                
1

7
1

,8
8

0
                

4
9

,5
7

1
                  

1
,0

2
8

,8
8

0
             

3
5

1
,0

0
7

               
1

,0
2

8
,8

8
0

                 
-

                            

C
e

rtifica
te

d
 P

u
p

il S
u

p
p

o
rt S

a
la

rie
s  

1
2

0
0

-
                             

-
                            

-
                                 

-
                            

C
e

rtifica
te

d
 S

u
p

e
rv

iso
rs' a

n
d

 A
d

m
in

istra
to

rs' S
a

la
rie

s 
1

3
0

0
1

8
3

,0
0

0
                

6
1

,0
0

0
                  

1
8

3
,0

0
0

                
6

1
,0

0
0

                 
1

8
3

,0
0

0
                     

-
                            

O
th

e
r C

e
rtifica

te
d

 S
a

la
rie

s 
1

9
0

0
4

4
,2

2
5

                  
1

9
,4

1
7

                  
4

4
,2

2
5

                  
1

9
,4

1
7

                 
4

4
,2

2
5

                       
-

                            

T
o

ta
l, C

e
rtifica

te
d

 S
a

la
rie

s 
1

,0
4

0
,0

0
0

             
3

6
2

,4
3

6
                

2
1

6
,1

0
5

                
6

8
,9

8
8

                  
1

,2
5

6
,1

0
5

             
4

3
1

,4
2

4
               

1
,2

5
6

,1
0

5
                 

-
                            

2
. C

la
ssifie

d
 S

a
la

rie
s 

C
la

ssifie
d

 In
stru

ctio
n

a
l S

a
la

rie
s

2
1

0
0

1
6

3
,2

4
5

                
5

5
,8

5
5

                  
1

6
0

,3
9

5
                

3
3

,3
5

7
                  

3
2

3
,6

4
0

                
8

9
,2

1
2

                 
3

2
3

,6
4

0
                     

-
                            

C
la

ssifie
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt S

a
la

rie
s 

2
2

0
0

4
8

,7
5

0
                  

1
,3

5
4

                    
1

6
,2

5
0

                  
2

0
,3

1
2

                  
6

5
,0

0
0

                  
2

1
,6

6
6

                 
6

5
,0

0
0

                       
-

                            

C
la

ssifie
d

 S
u

p
e

rv
iso

rs' a
n

d
 A

d
m

in
istra

to
rs' S

a
la

rie
s  

2
3

0
0

6
7

,0
0

0
                  

2
2

,6
6

7
                  

6
7

,0
0

0
                  

2
2

,6
6

7
                 

6
7

,0
0

0
                       

-
                            

C
le

rica
l a

n
d

 O
ffice

 S
a

la
rie

s  
2

4
0

0
6

4
,7

1
5

                  
2

2
,5

0
0

                  
6

1
,8

0
0

                  
1

9
,2

7
6

                  
1

2
6

,5
1

5
                

4
1

,7
7

6
                 

1
2

6
,5

1
5

                     
-

                            

O
th

e
r C

la
ssifie

d
 S

a
la

rie
s 

2
9

0
0

-
                             

-
                            

-
                                 

-
                            

T
o

ta
l, C

la
ssifie

d
 S

a
la

rie
s 

3
4

3
,7

1
0

                
1

0
2

,3
7

6
                

2
3

8
,4

4
5

                
7

2
,9

4
5

                  
5

8
2

,1
5

5
                

1
7

5
,3

2
1

               
5

8
2

,1
5

5
                     

-
                            

D
e

scrip
tio

n



C
h

a
rte

r S
ch

o
o

l N
a

m
e

:                           
In

n
o

v
a

tio
n

s A
ca

d
e

m
y

F
irst In

te
rim

 R
e

p
o

rt
A

u
th

o
rizin

g
 A

g
e

n
cy

:
S

a
n

 D
ie

g
o

 U
n

ifie
d

 S
ch

o
o

l D
istrict

C
D

S
#

 3
7

-6
8

3
3

8
-

1
1

8
0

8
3

F
Y

 2
0

1
6

-2
0

1
7

F
in

a
n

cia
l A

cco
u

n
tin

g
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n

t

C
o

n
ta

ct n
a

m
e

:
C

h
ristin

e
 K

u
g

le
n

F
o

r th
e

 P
e

rio
d

 Ju
ly

 1
 2

0
1

6
 th

ro
u

g
h

 O
cto

b
e

r 3
1

, 2
0

1
6

C
h

a
rte

r S
ch

o
o

ls A
cco

u
n

tin
g

 O
ffice

E
-m

a
il a

n
d

 p
h

o
n

e
 #

:
ch

ristin
e

@
in

n
o

v
a

tio
n

sa
ca

d
e

m
y
.o

rg
/(8

5
8

) 2
7

1
-1

4
1

4
A

ccru
a

l B
a

sis
A

u
th

o
rizin

g
 A

g
e

n
cy

 C
o

n
ta

ct:
A

n
n

a
 D

a
y
 (a

d
a

y
1

@
sa

n
d

in
e

t)

  
A

u
th

o
rizin

g
 A

g
e

n
cy

 C
o

n
ta

ct:
D

e
b

ra
 G

la
n

z (d
g

la
n

z@
sa

n
d

i.n
e

t)

a
b

c
d

a + c = e
b + d = f

the > of e or f = g
h

O
b

je
ct C

o
d

e
 U

n
re

stricte
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

U
n

re
stricte

d
 

A
ctu

a
ls th

ro
u

g
h

 

1
0

/3
1

/1
5

 R
e

stricte
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

stricte
d

 A
ctu

a
ls 

th
ro

u
g

h
 1

0
/3

1
/1

5
T

o
ta

l B
u

d
g

e
t

T
o

ta
l A

ctu
a

ls 

th
ro

u
g

h
 1

0
/3

1
/1

5

P
ro

je
cte

d
 E

F
B

/N
P

 

(H
ig

h
e

r o
f B

u
d

g
e

t o
r 

A
ctu

a
l)

B
u

d
g

e
t to

 

P
ro

je
cte

d
 E

F
B

/N
P

 

D
iffe

re
n

ce
s

D
e

scrip
tio

n

3
. E

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 B

e
n

e
fits 

S
T

R
S

 
3

1
0

1
-3

1
0

2
1

3
0

,8
3

2
                

4
5

,8
6

2
                  

2
7

,1
8

6
                  

6
,2

8
5

                    
1

5
8

,0
1

8
                

5
2

,1
4

7
                 

1
5

8
,0

1
8

                     
-

                            

P
E

R
S

 
3

2
0

1
-3

2
0

2
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

O
A

S
D

I/M
e

d
ica

re
 (S

o
cia

l S
e

cu
rity

)
3

3
0

1
-3

3
0

2
4

1
,3

7
4

                  
1

3
,5

1
6

                  
2

1
,3

7
5

                  
7

,0
7

0
                    

6
2

,7
4

9
                  

2
0

,5
8

6
                 

6
2

,7
4

9
                       

-
                            

H
e

a
lth

 a
n

d
 W

e
lfa

re
 B

e
n

e
fits  

3
4

0
1

-3
4

0
2

1
7

8
,2

0
0

                
6

9
,4

0
7

                  
3

0
,6

0
0

                  
6

,1
5

4
                    

2
0

8
,8

0
0

                
7

5
,5

6
1

                 
2

0
8

,8
0

0
                     

-
                            

U
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t In
su

ra
n

ce
  

3
5

0
1

-3
5

0
2

4
1

,5
1

1
                  

4
,7

7
4

                    
1

3
,6

3
6

                  
2

,0
4

8
                    

5
5

,1
4

7
                  

6
,8

2
2

                   
5

5
,1

4
7

                       
-

                            

W
o

rk
e

rs' C
o

m
p

e
n

sa
tio

n
 In

su
ra

n
ce

  
3

6
0

1
-3

6
0

2
3

4
,5

9
3

                  
1

6
,9

6
0

                  
1

1
,3

6
4

                  
4

5
,9

5
7

                  
1

6
,9

6
0

                 
4

5
,9

5
7

                       
-

                            

O
P

E
B

, A
llo

ca
te

d
3

7
0

1
-3

7
0

2
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

O
P

E
B

, A
ctiv

e
 E

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s

3
7

5
1

-3
7

5
2

-
                             

-
                            

-
                                 

-
                            

O
th

e
r E

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 B

e
n

e
fits

3
9

0
1

-3
9

0
2

-
                             

-
                            

-
                                 

-
                            

T
o

ta
l, E

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 B

e
n

e
fits 

4
2

6
,5

1
0

                
1

5
0

,5
1

9
                

1
0

4
,1

6
1

                
2

1
,5

5
7

                  
5

3
0

,6
7

1
                

1
7

2
,0

7
6

               
5

3
0

,6
7

1
                     

-
                            

4
. B

o
o

k
s a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

lie
s 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 T

e
xtb

o
o

k
s a

n
d

 C
o

re
 C

u
rricu

la
 M

a
te

ria
ls 

4
1

0
0

1
1

,3
2

9
                  

6
,2

8
1

                    
1

1
,3

2
9

                  
6

,2
8

1
                   

1
1

,3
2

9
                       

-
                            

B
o

o
k
s a

n
d

 O
th

e
r R

e
fe

re
n

ce
 M

a
te

ria
ls

4
2

0
0

5
,8

0
8

                    
2

,3
6

9
                    

1
2

9
                        

5
,8

0
8

                    
2

,4
9

8
                   

5
,8

0
8

                         
-

                            

M
a

te
ria

ls a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
4

3
0

0
2

8
,3

7
5

                  
1

5
,3

8
8

                  
2

3
,8

3
4

                  
1

7
,3

2
0

                  
5

2
,2

0
9

                  
3

2
,7

0
8

                 
5

2
,2

0
9

                       
-

                            

N
o

n
-ca

p
ita

lize
d

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

4
4

0
0

5
1

,7
5

0
                  

5
6

,9
7

2
                  

9
5

6
                        

5
1

,7
5

0
                  

5
7

,9
2

8
                 

5
7

,9
2

8
                       

(6
,1

7
8

)
                  

F
o

o
d

 (F
o

o
d

 u
se

d
 in

 fo
o

d
-se

rv
ice

 a
ctiv

itie
s fo

r w
h

ich
 th

e
 p

u
rp

o
se

 is n
u

tritio
n

)
4

7
0

0
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

T
o

ta
l, B

o
o

k
s a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

lie
s 

9
7

,2
6

2
                  

8
1

,0
1

0
                  

2
3

,8
3

4
                  

1
8

,4
0

5
                  

1
2

1
,0

9
6

                
9

9
,4

1
5

                 
1

2
7

,2
7

4
                     

(6
,1

7
8

)
                  

5
. S

e
rv

ice
s a

n
d

 O
th

e
r O

p
e

ra
tin

g
 E

xp
e

n
d

itu
re

s 

S
u

b
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts fo
r S

e
rv

ice
s

5
1

0
0

-
                             

-
                            

-
                                 

-
                            

T
ra

v
e

l a
n

d
 C

o
n

fe
re

n
ce

s
5

2
0

0
6

8
,3

8
6

                  
4

,7
9

5
                    

1
3

,7
7

5
                  

6
8

,3
8

6
                  

1
8

,5
7

0
                 

6
8

,3
8

6
                       

-
                            

D
u

e
s a

n
d

 M
e

m
b

e
rsh

ip
s

5
3

0
0

2
0

,8
0

4
                  

7
9

4
                        

9
0

                          
2

0
,8

0
4

                  
8

8
4

                       
2

0
,8

0
4

                       
-

                            

In
su

ra
n

ce
5

4
0

0
2

5
,3

0
0

                  
1

1
,4

2
4

                  
2

5
,3

0
0

                  
1

1
,4

2
4

                 
2

5
,3

0
0

                       
-

                            

O
p

e
ra

tio
n

s a
n

d
 H

o
u

se
k
e

e
p

in
g

 S
e

rv
ice

s
5

5
0

0
4

2
,4

2
6

                  
4

,6
0

0
                    

4
2

,4
2

6
                  

4
,6

0
0

                   
4

2
,4

2
6

                       
-

                            

R
e

n
ta

ls,Le
a

se
s,R

e
p

a
irs,a

n
d

 N
o

n
-ca

p
ita

lize
d

 Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

5
6

0
0

1
6

8
,3

0
5

                
6

4
,9

3
8

                  
1

6
8

,3
0

5
                

6
4

,9
3

8
                 

1
6

8
,3

0
5

                     
-

                            

T
ra

n
sfe

r o
f D

ire
ct C

o
sts (M

U
ST

 net to zero)
5

7
0

0
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

P
ro

f/C
o

n
su

ltin
g

 S
rv

cs a
n

d
 O

p
e

ra
tin

g
 E

xp
e

n
d

 (Include District O
versight)

5
8

0
0

3
0

5
,2

1
0

                
5

7
,8

3
0

                  
2

5
,0

0
0

                  
1

0
,9

1
9

                  
3

3
0

,2
1

0
                

6
8

,7
4

9
                 

3
3

0
,2

1
0

                     
-

                            

C
o

m
m

u
n

ica
tio

n
s

5
9

0
0

1
1

,5
0

0
                  

2
,7

9
7

                    
1

1
,5

0
0

                  
2

,7
9

7
                   

1
1

,5
0

0
                       

-
                            

T
o

ta
l, S

e
rv

ice
s a

n
d

 O
th

e
r O

p
e

ra
tin

g
 E

xp
e

n
d

itu
re

s 
6

4
1

,9
3

1
                

1
4

7
,1

7
8

                
2

5
,0

0
0

                  
2

4
,7

8
4

                  
6

6
6

,9
3

1
                

1
7

1
,9

6
2

               
6

6
6

,9
3

1
                     

-
                            

6
. C

a
p

ita
l O

u
tla

y
 

D
e

p
re

cia
tio

n
 E

xp
e

n
se

 (S
e

e
 S

e
ctio

n
s G

.9
 &

 F
.2

.a
)

6
9

0
0

6
,2

9
4

                    
6

,2
9

4
                    

-
                            

6
,2

9
4

                         
-

                            

T
o

ta
l, C

a
p

ita
l O

u
tla

y
 

6
,2

9
4

                    
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
6

,2
9

4
                    

-
                            

6
,2

9
4

                         
-

                            

7
. O

th
e

r O
u

tg
o

 

T
u

itio
n

 to
 O

th
e

r S
ch

o
o

ls (Include contribuiton to unfunded cost of Sp Ed.)
7

1
1

0
-7

1
4

3
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

T
ra

n
sfe

rs o
f P

a
ss-th

ro
u

g
h

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s to

 O
th

e
r LE

A
s 

7
2

1
1

-7
2

1
3

-
                             

-
                            

-
                                 

-
                            

T
ra

n
sfe

rs o
f A

p
p

o
rtio

n
m

e
n

ts to
 O

th
e

r LE
A

s - S
p

e
c E

d
 a

n
d

 A
ll O

th
e

rs
7

2
2

1
-7

2
2

3
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

A
ll O

th
e

r T
ra

n
sfe

rs 
7

2
8

0
-7

2
9

9
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

T
ra

n
sfe

rs o
f In

d
ire

ct C
o

sts (M
U

ST net to zero)
7

3
0

0
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

D
e

b
t S

e
rv

ice
 - In

te
re

st 
7

4
3

8
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

T
o

ta
l, O

th
e

r O
u

tg
o

 
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

8
. T

O
T

A
L E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S

 
2

,5
5

5
,7

0
7

             
8

4
3

,5
1

9
                

6
0

7
,5

4
5

                
2

0
6

,6
7

9
                

3
,1

6
3

,2
5

2
             

1
,0

5
0

,1
9

8
            

3
,1

6
9

,4
3

0
                 

(6
,1

7
8

)
                  

C
. E

X
C

E
S

S
 (D

E
F

IC
IE

N
C

Y
) O

F
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
 O

V
E

R
 E

X
P

E
N

D
. 

B
E

F
O

R
E

 O
T

H
E

R
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 A

N
D

 U
S

E
S

 (A
5

-B
8

) 
7

4
2

,2
5

5
                

(8
7

,1
2

1
)

                 
(2

9
7

,9
3

3
)

               
(1

4
7

,2
0

6
)

               
4

4
4

,3
2

2
                

(2
3

4
,3

2
7

)
              

4
5

7
,9

0
5

                     
(1

3
,5

8
3

)
                

D
. O

T
H

E
R

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
S

/U
S

E
S

 (7
6

0
0

-7
6

9
9

, 8
9

3
0

-8
9

9
9

)

1
. A

ll O
th

e
r F

in
a

n
cin

g
 S

o
u

rce
s 

8
9

3
0

-8
9

7
9

-
                             

-
                            

-
                                 

-
                            

2
. O

th
e

r U
se

s 
7

6
3

0
-7

6
9

9
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            

3
. C

o
n

trib
u

tio
n

s b
e

tw
e

e
n

 u
n

re
stricte

d
 a

n
d

 re
stricte

d
 a

cco
u

n
ts (M

U
ST net to zero)

8
9

8
0

-8
9

9
9

-
                             

-
                            

-
                                 

-
                            

(Include contribution to the unfunded cost of Special Education)
4

. T
O

T
A

L O
T

H
E

R
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 S
O

U
R

C
E

S
/U

S
E

S
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                             
-

                            
-

                                 
-

                            



C
h

a
rte

r S
ch

o
o

l N
a

m
e

:                           
In

n
o

v
a

tio
n

s A
ca

d
e

m
y

F
irst In

te
rim

 R
e

p
o

rt
A

u
th

o
rizin

g
 A

g
e

n
cy

:
S

a
n

 D
ie

g
o

 U
n

ifie
d

 S
ch

o
o

l D
istrict

C
D

S
#

 3
7

-6
8

3
3

8
-

1
1

8
0

8
3

F
Y

 2
0

1
6

-2
0

1
7

F
in

a
n

cia
l A

cco
u

n
tin

g
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n

t

C
o

n
ta

ct n
a

m
e

:
C

h
ristin

e
 K

u
g

le
n

F
o

r th
e

 P
e

rio
d

 Ju
ly

 1
 2

0
1

6
 th

ro
u

g
h

 O
cto

b
e

r 3
1

, 2
0

1
6

C
h

a
rte

r S
ch

o
o

ls A
cco

u
n

tin
g

 O
ffice

E
-m

a
il a

n
d

 p
h

o
n

e
 #

:
ch

ristin
e

@
in

n
o

v
a

tio
n

sa
ca

d
e

m
y
.o

rg
/(8

5
8

) 2
7

1
-1

4
1

4
A

ccru
a

l B
a

sis
A

u
th

o
rizin

g
 A

g
e

n
cy

 C
o

n
ta

ct:
A

n
n

a
 D

a
y
 (a

d
a

y
1

@
sa

n
d

in
e

t)

  
A

u
th

o
rizin

g
 A

g
e

n
cy

 C
o

n
ta

ct:
D

e
b

ra
 G

la
n

z (d
g

la
n

z@
sa

n
d

i.n
e

t)

a
b

c
d

a + c = e
b + d = f

the > of e or f = g
h

O
b

je
ct C

o
d

e
 U

n
re

stricte
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

U
n

re
stricte

d
 

A
ctu

a
ls th

ro
u

g
h

 

1
0

/3
1

/1
5

 R
e

stricte
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

stricte
d

 A
ctu

a
ls 

th
ro

u
g

h
 1

0
/3

1
/1

5
T

o
ta

l B
u

d
g

e
t

T
o

ta
l A

ctu
a

ls 

th
ro

u
g

h
 1

0
/3

1
/1

5

P
ro

je
cte

d
 E

F
B

/N
P

 

(H
ig

h
e

r o
f B

u
d

g
e

t o
r 

A
ctu

a
l)

B
u

d
g

e
t to

 

P
ro

je
cte

d
 E

F
B

/N
P

 

D
iffe

re
n

ce
s

D
e

scrip
tio

n

E
. N

E
T

 IN
C

R
E

A
S

E
 (D

E
C

R
E

A
S

E
) IN

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E

/N
E

T
 P

O
S

IT
IO

N (C
 +

 D
.4

.) 
7

4
2

,2
5

5
                

(8
7

,1
2

1
)

                 
(2

9
7

,9
3

3
)

               
(1

4
7

,2
0

6
)

               
4

4
4

,3
2

2
                

(2
3

4
,3

2
7

)
              

4
5

7
,9

0
5

                     
(1

3
,5

8
3

)
                

F
. F

U
N

D
 B

A
LA

N
C

E
/N

E
T

 P
O

S
IT

IO
N

  (Budget and Actuals M
U

ST
 m

atch) ( F.1.a-b)
1

. B
e

g
in

n
in

g
 F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
ce

/N
e

t P
o

sitio
n

a
. Ju

ly
 1

 (M
U

ST m
a

tch
 EFB/Net Position of PY Unaudited Actuals, Section F.2)

9
7

9
1

1
,6

1
1

,9
5

6
             

1
,6

1
1

,9
5

6
             

1
2

7
,1

7
6

                
1

2
7

,1
7

6
                

1
,7

3
9

,1
3

2
             

1
,7

3
9

,1
3

2
            

1
,7

3
9

,1
3

2
                 

-
                            

b
. A

d
ju

stm
e

n
ts/R

e
sta

te
m

e
n

ts
9

7
9

3
, 9

7
9

5
(8

1
,4

2
6

)
                 

(8
1

,4
2

6
)

                 
-

                             
(8

1
,4

2
6

)
                 

(8
1

,4
2

6
)

                
(8

1
,4

2
6

)
                     

-
                            

c. A
d

ju
ste

d
 B

e
g

in
n

in
g

 F
u

n
d

 B
a

la
n

ce
/N

e
t P

o
sitio

n
1

,5
3

0
,5

3
0

             
1

,5
3

0
,5

3
0

             
1

2
7

,1
7

6
                

1
2

7
,1

7
6

                
1

,6
5

7
,7

0
6

             
1

,6
5

7
,7

0
6

            
1

,6
5

7
,7

0
6

                 
-

                            

2. Projected Ending Fund Balance/N
et Position, June 30 (E + F.1.c.) 

S
e

e
 ce

ll  L1
3

4
2

,2
7

2
,7

8
5

             
1

,4
4

3
,4

0
9

             
(1

7
0

,7
5

7
)

               
(2

0
,0

3
0

)
                 

2
,1

0
2

,0
2

8
             

1
,4

2
3

,3
7

9
            

2
,1

1
5

,6
1

1
                 

(1
3

,5
8

3
)

                

C
o

m
p

o
n

e
n

ts o
f E

n
d

in
g

 N
e

t P
o

sitio
n

a
. N

e
t In

v
e

stm
e

n
t in

 C
a

p
ita

l A
sse

ts (See Sections B.6 and G
.9

)
9

7
9

6
-

                             
-

                            

b
. R

e
stricte

d
 N

e
t P

o
sitio

n
 

9
7

9
7

(2
0

,0
3

0
)

                 
(2

0
,0

3
0

)
                

c. U
n

re
stricte

d
 N

e
t P

o
sitio

n
9

7
9

0
A

1
,4

4
3

,4
0

9
             

-
                             

1
,4

4
3

,4
0

9
            

-
                             

G
. A

S
S

E
T

S
 

1
. C

a
sh

 

In
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
re

a
su

ry
 

9
1

1
0

6
1

7
,5

3
1

                
(2

0
,0

3
0

)
                 

5
9

7
,5

0
1

               

F
a

ir V
a

lu
e

 A
d

ju
stm

e
n

t to
 C

a
sh

 in
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
re

a
su

ry
9

1
1

1
-

                            

In
 B

a
n

k
s 

9
1

2
0

8
5

7
,3

6
9

                
8

5
7

,3
6

9
               

In
 R

e
v
o

lv
in

g
 F

u
n

d
 

9
1

3
0

-
                            

W
ith

 F
isca

l A
g

e
n

t/T
ru

ste
e

9
1

3
5

-
                            

C
o

lle
ctio

n
s A

w
a

itin
g

 D
e

p
o

sit 
9

1
4

0
-

                            

2
. In

v
e

stm
e

n
ts 

9
1

5
0

-
                            

3
. A

cco
u

n
ts R

e
ce

iv
a

b
le

 
9

2
0

0
2

6
0

                        
2

6
0

                       

4
. D

u
e

 F
ro

m
 G

ra
n

to
r G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
9

2
9

0
2

4
,1

8
2

                  
2

4
,1

8
2

                 

5
. D

u
e

 F
ro

m
 O

th
e

r F
u

n
d

s 
9

3
1

0
-

                            

6
. S

to
re

s 
9

3
2

0
-

                            

7
. P

re
p

a
id

 E
xp

e
n

d
itu

re
s (E

xp
e

n
se

s)
9

3
3

0
3

2
,6

6
7

                  
3

2
,6

6
7

                 

8
. O

th
e

r C
u

rre
n

t A
sse

ts 
9

3
4

0
-

                            

9
. C

a
p

ita
l A

sse
ts (See Sections B.6 &

 F.2.a
)

9
4

0
0

-9
4

8
9

-
                            

1
0

.T
O

T
A

L A
S

S
E

T
S

 
1

,5
3

2
,0

0
9

             
(2

0
,0

3
0

)
                 

1
,5

1
1

,9
7

9
            

H
. D

E
F

E
R

R
E

D
 O

U
T

F
LO

W
S

 O
F

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

1
. D

e
fe

rre
d

 O
u

tflo
w

s o
f R

e
so

u
rce

s
9

4
9

0
-

                            

2
. T

O
T

A
L D

E
F

E
R

R
E

D
 O

U
T

F
LO

W
S

-
                             

-
                             

-
                            

I. LIA
B

ILIT
IE

S
 

1
. A

cco
u

n
ts P

a
y
a

b
le

 
9

5
0

0
8

8
,6

0
0

                  
8

8
,6

0
0

                 

2
. D

u
e

 to
 G

ra
n

to
r G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
9

5
9

0
-

                            

3
. D

u
e

 to
 O

th
e

r F
u

n
d

s 
9

6
1

0
-

                            

4
. C

u
rre

n
t Lo

a
n

s
9

6
4

0
-

                            

5
. D

e
fe

rre
d

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 

9
6

5
0

-
                            

6
. Lo

n
g

-te
rm

 Lia
b

ilitie
s

9
6

6
0

-9
6

6
9

-
                            

7
. T

O
T

A
L LIA

B
ILIT

IE
S

 
8

8
,6

0
0

                  
-

                             
8

8
,6

0
0

                 

J. D
E

F
E

R
R

E
D

 IN
F

LO
W

S
 O

F
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

1
. D

e
fe

rre
d

 In
flo

w
s o

f R
e

so
u

rce
s

9
6

9
0

-
                            

2
. T

O
T

A
L D

E
F

E
R

R
E

D
 IN

F
LO

W
S

-
                             

-
                             

-
                            

K
. E

N
D

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E

/N
E

T
 P

O
S

IT
IO

N
, O

cto
b

e
r 3

1
, 2

0
1

6
 

 
 

1
. E

n
d

in
g

 F
u

n
d

 B
a

la
n

ce
/N

e
t P

o
sitio

n
  (G

1
0

+
H

2
-I7

-J2
) 

1
,4

4
3

,4
0

9
             

(2
0

,0
3

0
)

                 
1

,4
2

3
,3

7
9

            

(M
U

ST
 agree w

ith F.2)



 

Innovations Academy 
Charter School # 1024 
Financial Statements 
June 30, 2016 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report  ..........................................................................................  2 
 
Statement of Financial Position ........................................................................................  4 
 
Statement of Activities ......................................................................................................  5 
 
Statement of Cash Flows ..................................................................................................  6 
 
Notes to Financial Statements  ..........................................................................................  7 
 
Supplementary Information 
 Organization ..............................................................................................................  14 
 Schedule of Average Daily Attendance ....................................................................  15 
 Schedule of Instructional Time .................................................................................  16 
 Statement of Functional Expenses  ...........................................................................  17 
 Reconciliation of Charter School Unaudited Actuals Financial 
  Report – Alternative Form With Audited Financial Statements  ........................  18 
 
Other Independent Auditor’s Report Section 
 Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and 
  on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
   Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards  .........................  19 
 Independent Auditor’s Report on State Compliance  ...............................................  21 
 
Findings and Recommendations Section 
 Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs ..................................................  23 
 Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings  ............................................................  24 



 

 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

 
Board of Directors 
Innovations Academy  
San Diego, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Innovations Academy (a nonprofit 
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016, and the 
related statements of activities and cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
.  



 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions.  
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Innovations Academy as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Other Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The supplementary information as listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is 
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December XX, 2016, on our consideration of Innovations Academy’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering Innovations Academy’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 
 
 
SQUAR MILNER LLP 
 
San Diego, California 
December XX, 2016 



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 4 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statement. 

 
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash 1,347,449$    
Accounts receivable 320,118         
Prepaid expenses 83,873

Total current assets 1,751,440      
TOTAL ASSETS 1,751,440$    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 49,974$         
Accrued expenses 30,000           
Current portion of long-term liabilities 13,760           

Total current liabilities 93,734           
Net assets:

Temporarily restricted 75,750           
Unrestricted 1,581,956      

Total net assets 1,657,706      
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 1,751,440$    

 
 
 



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 5 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statement. 

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Revenue limit sources:

State apportionments 701,075$        -$                    701,075$        
Education protection account 182,033 -                      182,033          
In-lieu of property taxes 1,729,967       -                      1,729,967       

Federal revenues 80,110            -                      80,110            
State revenues 468,664          (27,102)           441,562          
Local revenues:

Fundraising 6,539              -                      6,539              
Miscellaneous 6,707              -                      6,707              

Total revenues 3,175,095       (27,102)           3,147,993       

EXPENSES
Program service:

Education 2,567,037       -                      2,567,037       
Support services:

Management and general 232,321          -                      232,321          
Total expenses 2,799,358       -                      2,799,358       

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 375,737          (27,102)           348,635          

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,206,219       102,852          1,309,071       

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 1,581,956$     75,750$          1,657,706$     



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 6 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statement. 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets 348,635$     
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash used in operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable (14,474)        
Prepaid expenses (17,225)        

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable 20,706         
Accrued expenses 30,000         

Net cash flows provided by operating activities 367,642       

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payment on long-term liabilities (6,120)          

NET CHANGE IN CASH 361,522       

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 985,927       

CASH, END OF YEAR 1,347,449$  

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES:

Cash paid for interest 54$              
 

 
 
.



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 7 

1. ORGANIZATION AND MISSION 
 
Innovations Academy (the Organization) was incorporated in the State of California on May 22, 
2007, under the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law for public and charitable purposes. 
The Organization petitioned and was approved through the San Diego Unified School District 
for a five year period ending in June 30, 2018. The Organization was approved by the State of 
California Department of Education on May 27, 2008. 
 
The Organization commenced operations during the 2008-2009 fiscal year, and currently serves 
approximately 330 students in kindergarten through grade 8. 
 
The Mission of the Organization is to teach students to powerfully create their lives through self-
expression, compassionate connection, and purposeful learning. 
 
 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The financial statements are presented in conformity with Accounting Standards Codification 
(ASC) 958-205, Not-For-Profit Entities – Presentation of Financial Statements. Under ASC 
958-205, the Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets:  
 
Unrestricted net assets: Unrestricted net assets are available to support all activities of the 
Organization, and are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. These generally result from 
revenues generated by providing services, receiving unrestricted contributions, and receiving 
interest from investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-related services, raising 
contributions, and performing administrative functions. 
 
Temporarily restricted net assets: Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that 
will be met either by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time. When a donor 
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and are 
reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. There was $75,750 
in temporarily restricted net assets as of June 30, 2016. 
 
Permanently restricted net assets: Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that 
the restrictions be maintained permanently by the Organization. Generally, the donors of these 
assets permit the Organization to use all or part of the income earned on the related investments 
for general or specific purposes. There were no permanently restricted assets as of June 30, 2016. 
  



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 8 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Accounting Method - Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to not-for-profit organizations. The 
Organization uses the accrual basis of accounting, under which revenues are recognized when 
they are earned and expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the liability is 
incurred. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). 
It is, however, subject to income taxes from activities unrelated to its tax-exempt purpose. The 
Organization uses the same accounting methods for tax and financial reporting. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles provides accounting and disclosure guidance about 
positions taken by an entity in its tax returns that might be uncertain. Management has 
considered its tax positions and believes that all of the positions taken in its federal and state 
exempt organization tax returns are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination. The 
Organization’s returns are subject to examination by federal and state taxing authorities, 
generally for three years and four years, respectively, after they are filed. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents are from time to time variously composed of cash on hand and in 
banks. The Organization considers all highly liquid instruments with maturities of three months 
or less at the time of acquisition to be cash equivalents. As of June 30, 2016, there were no cash 
equivalents. 
 
Fixed Assets 
 
Fixed assets are recorded at cost and depreciated under the straight-line method over their 
estimated useful lives of 5 to 39 years. Equipment is depreciated over a useful life of 5 years. 
Building improvements are depreciated over a useful life of 39 years. Repair and maintenance 
 



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 9 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Fixed Assets (continued) 
 
costs, which do not extend the useful lives of the asset, are charged to expense. The cost of assets 
sold or retired and related amounts of accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts 
in the year of disposal, and any resulting gain or loss is included in the earnings. Management 
has elected to capitalize and depreciate all assets costing $2,500 or more; all other assets are 
charged to expense in the year incurred. 
 
Revenue Sources and Recognition 
 
The Organization receives federal, state and local revenues for the enhancement of various 
educational programs. This assistance is generally received based on applications submitted to 
and approved by various granting agencies. 
 
The Organization primarily receives the funds from California Department of Education (CDE). 
Amounts received from the CDE are recognized by the Organization based on the average daily 
attendance (ADA) of students. 
 
The Organization recognizes federal revenue to the extent that eligible expenditures have been 
incurred. 
 
Revenue that is restricted is recorded as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction 
expires in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. 
 
Functional Allocation of Expenses 
 
The costs of providing the program services have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the program 
services based on employees’ time incurred and managements’ estimates of the usage of 
resources. 
 
New Accounting Pronouncements 
 
In February 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (ASU 
2016-02). ASU 2016-02 requires a lessee to recognize a lease asset representing its right to use 
the underlying asset for the lease term, and a lease liability for the payments to be made to lessor, 
on its balance sheet for all operating leases greater than 12 months. ASU 2016-02 will be 
effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 
15, 2019. The Organization has not yet assessed the potential impact of this guidance on its 
financial statements. 
 



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 10 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
New Accounting Pronouncements (continued) 
 
In August 2016, The FASB issued ASU No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): 
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (ASU 2016-14). ASU 2016-14 
changes how a not-for-profit organization classifies its net assets, as well as the information it 
presents in financial statements and notes about its liquidity, financial performance, and cash 
flows. ASU 2016-14 requires amended presentation and disclosures to help not-for-profits 
provide more relevant information about their resources (and the changes in those resources) to 
donors, grantors, creditors, and other users. These include qualitative and quantitative 
requirements in the following areas: (1) net asset classes; (2) investment return; (3) expenses; (4) 
liquidity and availability of resources; and (5) presentation of operating cash flows. ASU 2016-
14 will be effective for annual financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2017, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2018. Application to interim financial statements is permitted but not required in the initial year 
of application. Early application of the amendments is permitted. The Organization has not yet 
assessed the potential impact of this guidance on its financial statements. 
 
 
3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2016, consisted of the following: 
 

Pooled Funds:
Cash in County Treasury 450,280$        

Deposits:
Cash in banks 896,669

Cash on hand:
Petty cash 500

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,347,449$     
 

 
 
Cash in County Treasury 
 
In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the Organization maintains cash in the San 
Diego County Treasury as part of the common investment pool $450,280 as of June 30, 2016.  
 



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 11 

The County Treasurer’s investments consist of 29.64% negotiable CDs, 24.63% commercial 
paper, 24.07% federal agencies, 10.34% U.S. Treasury notes, 5.50% money market funds, 4.59% 
supranational, 0.65% FDIC CDs, 0.55% asset backed securities, and 0.03% repurchase 
agreements. The credit ratings for these investments included A1+/A1 by Moody’s Investor 
Service, and AAA/AA- by Standard and Poor’s. 
 
Cash in Banks 
 
Cash balances held in banks are insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC). The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts that at times 
may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such 
accounts. At June 30, 2016, the Organization had $646,669 in uninsured funds. 
 
 
4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 
Accounts receivable at June 30, 2016, consisted of the following: 
 

In-lieu of property taxes 180,428$        
Federal revenues 43,952            
State revenues 94,601            
Miscellaneous 1,137              

Total accounts receivable 320,118$        
 

 
5. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES  
Long-Term Liabilities Activity 
 
Long-term liabilities activity includes debt and other long-term liabilities.  Changes in 
obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, are as follows: 

 
Balance Balance Due in

June 30, 2015 Additions Payments June 30,2016 One year
Litigation Settlement 19,880$      -$              (6,120)$        13,760$          13,760$     

Total 19,880$      -$              (6,120)$        13,760$          13,760$     
 

 
Litigation Settlement 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Organization was involved in litigation regarding the 
early termination of its facilities lease with Mission Grove Offices, LLC. In November 2010, the 
Organization entered into a stipulated settlement agreement through which it was agreed the  



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 12 

5. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
Litigation Settlement (continued) 
 
Organization would pay $510 per month for 100 months, for a total of $51,000 in past due rent 
and related fees. The repayment period was retroactive to July 1, 2010. The Organization paid 
off the balance in full July 2016. Future minimum payments on the outstanding settlement 
liability are as follows: 
 

Year Ending
June 30, Principal

2017 13,760$       

 
Line of Credit 
 
On November 21, 2014, the Organization entered into a line of credit for $250,000 with 
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. at an interest rate of 1.15% Per Annum above the Prime Rate of 
3.25%. On June 30, 2016, the outstanding balance on the line of credit was $0. 
 
 
6. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 
 
Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans 
maintained by agencies of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the 
State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), and classified employees are members of the 
California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS). 
 
 
6. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (continued) 
 
Plan Description and Funding Policy 
 
STRS 
 
Plan Description 
 
The Organization contributes to the State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS), a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered 
by STRS. The plan provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit 
provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers’ 
Retirement Law. According to the most recently available Comprehensive Annual Financial  
 
 



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 13 

6. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (continued) 
 
Plan Description (continued) 
 
Report and Actuarial Valuation Report for the year ended June 30, 2015, total plan assets are 
$180.6 billion, the total actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits is $301.3 billion, 
contributions from all employers totaled $2.5 billion, and the plan is 68.5% funded. The 
Organization did not contribute more than 5% of the total contributions to the plan. 
 
Copies of the STRS annual financial reports may be obtained from STRS, 7667 Folsom 
Boulevard, Sacramento, CA 95826 and www.calstrs.com. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
Active plan members are required to contribute 9.20% of their salary and the Organization is 
required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions 
used for determining the rate are those adopted by the STRS Teachers’ Retirement Board. The 
required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2015-2016 was 10.73% of annual payroll. The 
contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. The 
Organization’s contribution to STRS for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, was $130,468, and 
equals 100% of the required contributions for each fiscal year 
 
 
7. OPERATING LEASE 
 
The Organization leases facilities and office equipment under lease agreements longer than one 
year. The future minimum lease payments are as follows:  
 

Year Ending Lease 
June 30, Payments

2017 9,574$                  
2018 9,574                    
2019 9,574                    
2020 1,596                    

Total future lease payments 30,318$                
 

 
 
The Organization will receive no sublease rental revenues nor pay any contingent rentals 
associated with this lease. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, operating lease expense was 
$148,098. 
 



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 14 

 
8 TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 
  
Temporarily restricted net assets consist of entitlements received but not expended as of June 30, 
2016. At June 30, 2016, the Organization’s temporarily restricted net assets consisted of: 
 

Educator Effectiveness 24,324$          
California Clean Energy Job Acts 51,426$          

Total temporarily restricted net assets 75,750$          
 

 
 
9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
State Allowances, Awards, and Grants 
 
The Organization has received state funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and 
audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances 
under terms of the grants, management believes that any required reimbursement will not be 
material. 
 
 
13. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 
The Organization’s management has evaluated events or transactions that may occur for 
potential recognition or disclosure in the financial statements from the balance sheet date through 
December XX, 2016, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 
Management has determined that there were no subsequent events or transactions that would 
have a material impact on the current year financial statements. 
 
 



 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
ORGANIZATION 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 16 See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report. 

Innovations Academy [Charter #1024], is a Kindergarten through grade 8 Charter School and was 
granted a five-year charter by the San Diego Unified School District, expiring in June 30, 2018, 
pursuant to the terms of the Charter School Act of 1992, as amended. 
 
The Board of Directors for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, was comprised of the following 
members: 

 
Name Office Term Term Expiration

Nathan Cooper President 3 Years October 2016

Anthony Spitzberg Secretary 3 Years October 2016

Stephen Rosen Treasurer 3 Years February 2016

Danielle Strachman Board Member Annual December 2016

Administration
Name Position

Christine Kuglen Director

 
 



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 17 See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report. 

 

Classroom 
Based

Independent 
Study

Transitional Kindergarten/Kindergarten - Grade 3 131.24              41.41              
Grades 4 - 6 91.40                16.09              
Grades 7 - 8 62.28                8.60                

Total 284.92              66.10              

Classroom 
Based

Independent 
Study

Transitional Kindergarten/Kindergarten - Grade 3 130.47              41.78              
Grades 4 - 6 91.67                16.00              
Grades 7 - 8 62.72                8.42                

Total 284.86              66.20              

Second Period Report

Annual Report

 
The Organization generates 81% of its ADA from fulltime classroom-based and generates 19% 
of its ADA from a full-time independent study program. 
 
 



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 18 See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report. 

2015-2016 Number of Days
Minutes 2015-2016 Traditional

Grade Level Requirements Actual Minutes Calendar Status

Kindergarten 36,000 49,860 177 In Compliance

Grade 1 50,400 54,870 177 In Compliance

Grade 2 50,400 54,870 177 In Compliance

Grade 3 50,400 54,870 177 In Compliance

Grade 4 54,000 54,870 177 In Compliance

Grade 5 54,000 54,870 177 In Compliance

Grade 6 54,000 54,870 177 In Compliance

Grade 7 54,000 54,870 177 In Compliance

Grade 8 54,000 54,870 177 In Compliance

 
 



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 19 See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report. 

Program Support
Services Services

Management
Education and General Total

Certificated salaries 1,110,919$      57,625$           1,168,544$   
Classified salaries 449,537           88,237             537,774        
Employee benefits 390,224           37,388             427,612        
Books and supplies 84,313             1,220               85,533          
Travel and conferences 39,709             4,816               44,525          
Dues and memberships 6,721               831                  7,552            
Insurance 19,107             2,362               21,469          
Operation and housekeeping services 10,760             1,264               12,024          
Rental, leases, repairs, and

non-capitalized improvements 135,015           16,687             151,702        
Professional/consulting services and

operating expenditures 314,875           21,167             336,042        
Communications 5,857               724                  6,581            

Total expenses 2,567,037$      232,321$         2,799,358$   



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
RECONCILIATION OF CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS FINANCIAL 
REPORT - - ALTERNATIVE FORM WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 20 See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report. 

June 30, 2016, annual financial and budget
report fund balances 1,739,132$  

Adjustments and reclassifications:

Increasing (decreasing) the fund balance:

Accounts receivable overstatement (51,426)        

Accrued expenses understatement (30,000)        

Net adjustments and reclassifications (81,426)        

June 30, 2016, audited financial statement net assets 1,657,706$  
 

 



 

 

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS 
 



 
 
 
INDEPE

RE
AN

 
 
 
Board of 
Innovatio
San Dieg
 
We have
States of
Auditing 
statemen
financial 
the fiscal
report the
 
Internal 
 
In planni
Academy
procedur
the finan
Innovatio
effectiven
 
A deficie
managem
prevent, 
deficienc
possibilit
or detect
combinat
importan
 
Our cons
of this se
material 
not ident
However

ENDENT A
EPORTING

N AUDIT OF

f Directors 
ons Academy
go, California

e audited, in
f America a

Standards 
nts of Innova

position as 
l year then e
ereon dated 

Control Ove

ing and per
y’s internal 
res that are a
ncial stateme
ons Academ
ness of Inno

ency in inter
ment or emp

or detect a
cy, or a com
ty that a mat
ted and cor
tion of defic

nt enough to 

sideration of
ection and w
weaknesses 
tify any def
r, material w

AUDITORS’
G AND ON C
F FINANCI

WITH GO

y  
a 

n accordance
and the stan

issued by 
ations Acade
of June 30, 

ended, and th
December X

er Financia

rforming our
control ove

appropriate in
ents, but not 
my’s internal
ovations Aca

rnal control 
ployees, in 
and correct, 

mbination of 
terial misstat
rrected on a
ciencies, in i
merit attenti

f internal con
was not desig

or significa
ficiencies in

weaknesses m

’ REPORT O
COMPLIAN
IAL STATE
OVERNMEN

e with the a
ndards appli
the Comptr
my (a nonpr
2016, and th
he related n

XX, 2016. 

l Reporting

r audit of th
er financial 
n the circum
for the purp
l control. A

ademy’s inter

exists when
the normal 
misstateme
deficiencies
tement of th
a timely ba
internal cont
ion by those 

ntrol was for
gned to iden
ant deficienc
n internal co
may exist tha

ON INTERN
NCE AND O

EMENTS PE
NT AUDITIN

auditing stan
cable to fin
roller Gener
rofit organiz
he related st
otes to the f

he financial 
reporting (i

mstances for t
pose of expre
Accordingly, 

rnal control.

n the design 
course of p

ents on a ti
s, in internal
he entity’s fin
sis. A signi
trol that is le
charged wit

r the limited
ntify all defic
ies. Given th

ontrol that w
at have not b

NAL CONT
OTHER MA
ERFORMED
ING STAND

ndards gener
nancial audi
ral of the U
zation), whic
tatements of 
financial stat

 statements,
internal con
the purpose 
essing an op

we do not
. 

or operation
performing 
imely basis.
l control, su
nancial state
ificant defic
ess severe th
th governanc

d purpose de
ciencies in i
hese limitati
we consider 
been identifie

 

TROL OVE
ATTERS BA
D IN ACCO

DARDS 

rally accept
ts contained
United Stat
ch comprise
f activities an
tements, and

, we consid
ntrol) to det

of expressin
pinion on the
t express an

n of a contro
their assign

. A materia
uch that ther
ements will n
ciency is a 
han a materi
ce. 

escribed in th
internal cont
ions, during 

to be mate
ed. 

ER FINANC
ASED ON
ORDANCE 

ted in the U
d in Govern
tes, the fina
e the stateme
nd cash flow
d have issue

dered Innova
termine the 
ng our opinio
e effectivene
n opinion on

ol does not a
ned function
al weakness
re is a reason
not be preve
deficiency, 
ial weaknes

he first parag
trol that mig
our audit w

erial weakne

CIAL 

 

United 
nment 
ancial 
ent of 
ws for 
d our 

ations 
audit 

on on 
ess of 
n the 

allow 
ns, to 
 is a 
nable 

ented, 
or a 

s, yet 

graph 
ght be 
we did 
esses. 



 

 

Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Innovations Academy’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
SQUAR MILNER LLP 
 
 
San Diego, California 
December XX, 2016 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Board of 
Innovatio
San Dieg
 
Report o
 
We have
described
Complian
and mate
June 30, 
 
Managem
 
Managem
and grant
 
Auditor’s
 
Our resp
state prog
conducte
the Unit
Governm
State’s A
State Com
require t
noncomp
direct an
basis, ev
performin
 
We belie
state pro
Academy
and reco
applicabl
 

INDEPE

f Directors 
ons Academy
go, California

n Complian

 audited Inn
d in the 201
nce Reportin
erial effect o
2016. Innov

ment’s Resp

ment is respo
ts applicable

s Responsib

ponsibility is
grams based

ed our audit 
ted States o

ment Auditing
Audit Guide,
mpliance Re
that we pla
pliance with 
nd material e
vidence abo
ng such othe

eve that our 
ogram. How
y’s complian
ords to deter
le to the follo

ENDENT AU

y  
a 

nce for Each

novations Ac
5-16 Guide f
ng, published
on each of In
vations Acad

ponsibility 

onsible for c
e to its state p

bility 

s to express 
d on our audi

of complian
of America
g Standards,
, 2015-16 G
eporting, pub
an and perfo

the types o
effect on a s
out Innovat
er procedure

audit provi
wever, our a
nce. In conn
rmine the O

owing items: 

UDITORS’ 

h State Progr

cademy’s co
for Annual 
d by the Edu
nnovations A

demy’s state 

compliance w
programs. 

an opinion 
it of the type
nce in accor
a; the stand
, issued by th

Guide for An
blished by t
orm the au

of complianc
state program
tions Acade

es as we cons

des a reason
audit does 
nection with 
Organization

REPORT O

ram 

mpliance wi
Audits of K-

ucation Audi
Academy’s 
programs ar

with the requ

on complia
es of compli
dance with 

dards applic
he Comptrol

nnual Audits 
the Educatio
dit to obtai
ce requireme
m occurred. 
emy’s com
sidered nece

nable basis 
not provide
the audit re

n's complian

ON STATE 

ith the types
K-12 Local E

it Appeals P
state progra

re identified 

uirements of

ance for each
iance require
auditing sta

cable to fin
ller General 
 of K-12 Lo

on Audit App
in reasonab
ents referred
 An audit in

mpliance wit
essary in the 

for our opin
e a legal de
eferred to ab
nce with the

 

COMPLIA

s of complia
Education Ag
Panel, that co
ams for the f

below. 

f laws, regul

h of Innova
ements refer

andards gene
nancial aud
of the Unite

ocal Educati
peals Panel.
le assurance
d to above t
ncludes exam
th those re
circumstanc

nion on com
etermination

bove, we sele
e state laws

ANCE 

ance requirem
gencies and 
ould have a d
fiscal year e

lations, cont

ations Acade
rred to above
erally accept
dits containe
ed States; an
ion Agencies
 Those stan
e about wh
that could ha
mining, on a
equirements 
ces.  

mpliance for 
n of Innova
ected transac
s and regula

ments 
State 

direct 
ended 

tracts, 

emy’s 
e. We 
ted in 
ed in 
nd the 
s and 
dards 

hether 
ave a 
a test 

and 

each 
ations 
ctions 
ations 



 

 

Procedures
Description Performed
Educator Effectiveness Yes
California Clean Energy Jobs Act Yes
After School Education and Safety Program Not Applicable
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountabiltiy Plan Yes
Independent Study-Course Based Not Applicable
Immunizations Yes
Attendance Yes
Mode of Instruction Yes
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study for Charter Schools Yes
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction Not Applicable
Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based Yes
Charter School Facility Grant Program Not Applicable

 
The term “Not Applicable” is used above to mean either that the Organization did not offer the 
program during the current fiscal year, or that the program applies only to a different type of local 
education agency.  
 
Opinion on State Programs 
 
In our opinion, Innovations Academy  complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
its state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. 
 
The purpose of this report on state compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
state compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 2015-16 Guide for 
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
SQUAR MILNER LLP 
 
 
San Diego, California 
December XX, 2016 
 



 

 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS SECTION 
 



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 23 See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report. 

A. Summary of Auditor's Results

1. Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes X No

2. Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes N/A No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes N/A None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with section .510(a)
or OMB Uniform Guidance? Yes N/A No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes N/A No

Unmodified

N/A

N/A

The Organization did not have over $750,000 in Federal Expenditures.

 



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 24 See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report. 

 
A. Summary of Auditor's Results (Continued)

3. State Awards

Internal control over state programs:

One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None Reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance
for state programs:

B. Financial Statement Findings

None

C. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None

D. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None

Unmodified



 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY  
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR COSTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 
 

Page 25 See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report. 

Findings/Recommendations Current Status 

Management 
Explanation if 

Not Implemented 
     

   
     
 
 



U
p

c
o

m
in

g
 I

t
e
m

s
I
n

 c
a
s
e
 y

o
u

 m
is

s
e
d

 it

12/15/2016
1st Interim

 
12/15/2016

C
D

E D
U

E D
A
TE- 1st Interim

 
12/16/2016

Fall 1
12/16/2016

Fall 2

Looking A
head

I
n

n
o

v
a
t
io

n
s
 A

c
a
d

e
m

y

B
oard R

eport
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

6
 -

 O
c
t
o

b
e
r
 2

0
1

61
R
eport run at 12/6/2016 8:32:49 A

M



Financial S
napshot

T
o

t
a
l C

a
s
h

 o
n

 

H
a
n

d

B
o

o
k
 

B
a
la

n
c
e
:

$1,454,870

R
evenue  $815,871

B
udget  $779,507

R
evenue To B

udget  105 %

Expense  $1,050,198

B
udget  $1,046,522

Expense To B
udget  100 %

$0.00

$200,000.00

$400,000.00

$600,000.00

$800,000.00

$1,000,000.00

$1,200,000.00

Expense To D
ate

B
udget To D

ate

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
 T

o
 D

a
t
e

$0.00

$200,000.00

$400,000.00

$600,000.00

$800,000.00

$1,000,000.00

Incom
e To D

ate
B
udget To D

ate

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 T

o
 D

a
t
e

I
n

n
o

v
a
t
io

n
s
 A

c
a
d

e
m

y

B
oard R

eport
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

6
 -

 O
c
t
o

b
e
r
 2

0
1

62
R
eport run at 12/6/2016 8:32:49 A

M



R
evenue B

y C
ategory

A
ccount G

roup
D

escription
Total

Percent
800

R
evenue Lim

it
$717,146.00

87.90 %
820

Federal R
evenue

$7,747.00
0.95 %

840
O

ther S
tate R

evenue
$2,490.55

0.31 %
870

Local R
evenue

$88,487.37
10.85 %

T
o

t
a
l:

$
8

1
5

,8
7

0
.9

2

Federal R
evenue

Local R
evenue

O
ther S

tate R
evenue

R
evenue Lim

it

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 B

y
 C

a
t
e
g

o
r
y

I
n

n
o

v
a
t
io

n
s
 A

c
a
d

e
m

y

B
oard R

eport
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

6
 -

 O
c
t
o

b
e
r
 2

0
1

63
R
eport run at 12/6/2016 8:32:49 A

M



E
xpenses B

y C
ategory

A
ccount G

roup
D

escription
Total

Percent
100

C
ertificated S

alaries
$431,425.33

41.08 %
200

C
lassified S

alaries
$175,320.67

16.69 %
300

Em
ployee B

enefits
$172,076.17

16.39 %
400

B
ooks and S

upplies
$99,416.15

9.47 %
500

S
ervices &

 O
ther O

perating Expenses
$171,959.27

16.37 %
T
o

t
a
l:

$
1

,0
5

0
,1

9
7

.5
9

B
ooks and S

upplies
C
ertificated S

alaries
C
lassified S

alaries
Em

ployee B
enefits

S
ervices &

 O
ther O

perating 
Expenses

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s
 B

y
 C

a
t
e
g

o
r
y

I
n

n
o

v
a
t
io

n
s
 A

c
a
d

e
m

y

B
oard R

eport
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

6
 -

 O
c
t
o

b
e
r
 2

0
1

64
R
eport run at 12/6/2016 8:32:49 A

M



Y
TD

 A
ctual to B

udget S
um

m
ary

S
e
g

m
e
n

t
 N

a
m

e
F
ilt

e
r
 A

p
p

lie
d

O
bject

A
ll

R
estriction

A
ll

Location
A
ll

J
u

ly
 -

 O
c
t
o

b
e
r

2
0

1
6

 -
 2

0
1

7

A
c
c
o

u
n

t
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

t
io

n
A

c
t
u

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e
 $

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e
 %

T
o

t
a
l B

u
d

g
e
t

R
e
m

a
in

in
g

 B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 L

im
it

$717,146
$717,144

$2
0.0 %

$3,131,674
$2,199,730

F
e
d

e
r
a
l R

e
v
e
n

u
e

$7,747
$8,961

($1,214)
-13.5 %

$86,844
$79,097

O
t
h

e
r
 S

t
a
t
e
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e

$2,491
-

$2,491
0.0 %

$164,016
$156,451

L
o

c
a
l R

e
v
e
n

u
e

$88,487
$53,402

$35,085
65.7 %

$225,040
$134,208

T
o

t
a
l R

e
v
e
n

u
e

$815,871
$779,507

$36,364
4.7 %

$3,607,574
$2,569,486

C
e
r
t
if

ic
a
t
e
d

 S
a
la

r
ie

s
$431,425

$418,702
($12,724)

-3.0 %
$1,256,105

$701,186

C
la

s
s
if

ie
d

 S
a
la

r
ie

s
$175,321

$194,052
$18,731

9.7 %
$582,155

$347,234

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 B

e
n

e
f
it

s
$172,076

$176,890
$4,814

2.7 %
$530,671

$291,760

T
o

t
a
l P

e
r
s
o

n
n

e
l E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

$778,822
$789,644

$10,821
1.4 %

$2,368,931
$1,340,180

B
o

o
k
s
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

lie
s

$99,416
$40,365

($59,051)
-146.3 %

$121,096
$21,336

S
e
r
v
ic

e
s
 &

 O
t
h

e
r
 O

p
e
r
a
t
in

g
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

$171,959
$210,468

$38,509
18.3 %

$631,404
$426,929

C
a
p

it
a
l O

u
t
la

y
-

$2,098
$2,098

100.0 %
$6,294

$6,294

O
t
h

e
r
 O

u
t
g

o
-

$3,947
$3,947

100.0 %
$35,527

$32,831

T
o

t
a
l O

p
e
r
a
t
io

n
a
l E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

$271,375
$256,879

($14,497)
-5.6 %

$794,321
$487,390

T
o

t
a
l E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

$1,050,198
$1,046,522

($3,675)
-0.4 %

$3,163,252
$1,827,570

N
e
t
 I

n
c
o

m
e

($234,327)
($267,015)

$32,689
12.2 %

$444,322
$741,916

I
n

n
o

v
a
t
io

n
s
 A

c
a
d

e
m

y

B
oard R

eport
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

6
 -

 O
c
t
o

b
e
r
 2

0
1

65
R
eport run at 12/6/2016 8:32:49 A

M



B
alance S

heet S
um

m
ary

S
egm

ent N
am

e
Filter A

pplied
O

bject
A
ll

R
estriction

A
ll

Location
A
ll

Liquidity R
atio

17.1

A
s
s
e
t
s

C
u

r
r
e
n

t
 A

s
s
e
t
s

C
ash

$1,454,870

A
ccounts R

eceivables
$24,442

Prepaid Expenses
$32,667

T
o
t
a
l C

u
r
r
e
n
t
 A

s
s
e
t
s

$
1
,5

1
1
,9

7
8

F
ix

e
d

 A
s
s
e
t
s

T
o
t
a
l F

ix
e
d
 A

s
s
e
t
s

$
0

O
t
h

e
r
 A

s
s
e
t
s

T
o
t
a
l O

t
h
e
r
 A

s
s
e
t
s

$
0

T
o

t
a
l A

s
s
e
t
s

$
1
,5

1
1
,9

7
8

L
ia

b
ilit

ie
s
 a

n
d

 N
e
t
 A

s
s
e
t
s

C
u

r
r
e
n

t
 L

ia
b

ilit
ie

s

A
ccounts Payable

$88,599

A
ccrued S

alaries, Payroll Taxes, Postem
ploym

ent B
enefits

$1

I
n

n
o

v
a
t
io

n
s
 A

c
a
d

e
m

y

B
oard R

eport
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

6
 -

 O
c
t
o

b
e
r
 2

0
1

66
R
eport run at 12/6/2016 8:32:49 A

M



T
o
t
a
l C

u
r
r
e
n
t
 L

ia
b
ilit

ie
s

$
8
8
,6

0
0

L
o

n
g

 T
e
r
m

 L
ia

b
ilit

ie
s

T
o
t
a
l L

o
n
g
 T

e
r
m

 L
ia

b
ilit

ie
s

$
0

T
o
t
a
l L

ia
b
ilit

ie
s

$
8
8
,6

0
0

N
e
t
 A

s
s
e
t
s

R
estricted N

et A
ssets

$75,750

U
nrestricted N

et A
ssets

$1,581,955

Profit/Loss YTD
($234,327)

T
o
t
a
l N

e
t
 A

s
s
e
t
s

$
1
,4

2
3
,3

7
9

T
o

t
a
l L

ia
b

ilit
ie

s
 a

n
d

 N
e
t
 A

s
s
e
t
s

$
1
,5

1
1
,9

7
8

I
n

n
o

v
a
t
io

n
s
 A

c
a
d

e
m

y

B
oard R

eport
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

6
 -

 O
c
t
o

b
e
r
 2

0
1

67
R
eport run at 12/6/2016 8:32:49 A

M



M
onthly B

ook B
alance O

ver Tim
e

July 2015
August 2015 September 2015
October 2015 November 2015
December 2015
January 2016 February 2016
March 2016 April 2016 May 2016 June 2016 July 2016
August 2016 September 2016
October 2016 November 2016
December 2016
January 2017 February 2017
March 2017 April 2017 May 2017 June 2017

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

C
ash - A

ctual
Projected C

ash - C
urrent Fiscal Year

C
ash A

m
ount

A
ctual or Projected

July 2015
$1,008,030.42

A
ctual

A
ugust 2015

$961,526.21
A
ctual

S
eptem

ber 2015
$1,081,545.19

A
ctual

O
ctober 2015

$1,012,887.10
A
ctual

N
ovem

ber 2015
$1,000,847.17

A
ctual

D
ecem

ber 2015
$1,110,162.33

A
ctual

January 2016
$1,228,284.54

A
ctual

February 2016
$1,221,567.30

A
ctual

M
arch 2016

$1,385,304.61
A
ctual

A
pril 2016

$1,424,441.42
A
ctual

M
ay 2016

$1,401,476.11
A
ctual

June 2016
$1,347,448.76

A
ctual

C
ash A

m
ount

A
ctual or Projected

July 2016
$1,478,296.64

A
ctual

A
ugust 2016

$1,367,783.53
A
ctual

S
eptem

ber 2016
$1,479,787.15

A
ctual

O
ctober 2016

$1,454,870.04
A
ctual

N
ovem

ber 2016
$1,358,629.00

Projected
D

ecem
ber 2016

$1,400,563.00
Projected

January 2017
$1,411,638.00

Projected
February 2017

$1,439,538.00
Projected

M
arch 2017

$1,728,506.00
Projected

A
pril 2017

$1,748,669.00
Projected

M
ay 2017

$1,739,402.00
Projected

June 2017
$1,901,173.00

Projected

I
n

n
o

v
a
t
io

n
s
 A

c
a
d

e
m

y

B
oard R

eport
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

6
 -

 O
c
t
o

b
e
r
 2

0
1

68
R
eport run at 12/6/2016 8:32:49 A

M



Financial R
atio

Form
ula

C
urrent

Target
C
urrent R

atio (Liquidity)
(C

urrent A
ssets) / (C

urrent Liabilities)
17.07

>
 1.00

C
ash R

atio
(C

ash) / (C
urrent Liabilities)

1,642.07 %
>

 100.00%
D

efensive Interval
(C

ash +
 S

ecurities +
 A

R
) / (A

verage Expenses past 12 m
onths)

6.00
>

 3 m
onths

D
ebt R

atio
(Total Liabilties) / (Total A

ssets)
5.86 %

<
 33.00%

A
sset R

atio
(C

urrent A
ssets) / (Total A

ssets)
100.00 %

>
 90.00%

C
ash on H

and
(C

ash)
$1,454,870.04

>
=

 $800,000.00
D

ays C
ash on H

and
(C

ash) / ((A
verage Expenses past 12 m

onths) / (30.4))
179.30

>
 90

C
ash R

eserve R
atio

(C
ash) / (B

udgeted A
nnual Expenses)

45.99 %
>

 10.00%
S
avings Indicator

((Last C
losed R

evenue) - (Last C
losed Expenses)) / (Last C

losed Expenses)
-0.21

>
 1.00

YTD
 S

avings Indicator
((YTD

 C
losed R

evenue) - (YTD
 C

losed Expenses)) / (YTD
 C

losed Expenses)
-0.22

>
 1.00

Financial R
atio

D
escription

C
urrent R

atio (Liquidity)
A
bility to pay short-term

 obligations
C
ash R

atio
A
bility to m

eet short-term
 obligations w

ith cash
D

efensive Interval
Possible m

onths of continued operations if no additional funds received
D

ebt R
atio

Proportion of debt relative to total assets
A
sset R

atio
Proportion of liquid assets relative to total assets

C
ash on H

and
A
ssets im

m
ediately convertible to cash for purchase of goods and services

D
ays C

ash on H
and

Possible days of continued operations using current cash
C
ash R

eserve R
atio

R
atio of cash to annual expenses expressed as a percentage

S
avings Indicator

Last closed period's increase or decrease in the organization's net assets as a percentage of expenses
YTD

 S
avings Indicator

Year to date closed increase or decrease in the organization's net assets as a percentage of expenses

I
n

p
u

t
 V

a
lu

e
s
 a

s
 o

f
 1

0
/

3
1

/
2

0
1

6

Financial H
ealth R

eport

I
n

n
o

v
a
t
io

n
s
 A

c
a
d

e
m

y

B
oard R

eport
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

6
 -

 O
c
t
o

b
e
r
 2

0
1

69
R
eport run at 12/6/2016 8:32:49 A

M



C
ash

$1,454,870.04
S
ecurities

-
A
R

$24,441.65
C
urrent A

ssets
$1,511,978.37

Total A
ssets

$1,511,978.37
C
urrent Liabilities

$88,599.62
Total Liabilities

$88,599.62
Last C

losed R
evenue

$242,384.90
Last C

losed Expenses
$306,887.21

B
udgeted A

nnual Expenses
$3,163,251.84

A
verage Expenses past 12 m

onths
$246,671.77

A
verage m

onthly payroll expenses
$194,705.54

YTD
 C

losed R
evenue

$815,870.92
YTD

 C
losed Expenses

$1,050,197.59

I
n

n
o

v
a
t
io

n
s
 A

c
a
d

e
m

y

B
oard R

eport
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

6
 -

 O
c
t
o

b
e
r
 2

0
1

6

10
R
eport run at 12/6/2016 8:32:49 A

M





 

Faraz Sharafi 
Cell: 619 300 4051 
Email: FSharafi@gmail.com 

 

 

BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 

○ More than 25 years of building and managing engineering teams for developing/maintaining enterprise 
and global services/applications in highly secure and monitored environments (e.g. NASDAQ, NYSE) 
including over 15 years of managing offshore and global  

○ Over 15 years of experience in refactoring and redesigning products and services for scalability and 
maintainability 

○ Managed and Migrated multiple services and products to cloud (AWS, Azure) 
○ Designed/Developed/Managed in platforms including but not limited to Linux, Mac, Web, MS-DOS and 

Win 3.1 to Win 10, Mobile phones and Tablets (iOS, Android) 
○ Hands on experience in development languages including Java (8 years), C/C++ (over 20 years), C# .NET 

(14 years) and Scripting languages (e.g. JS, Node.JS, PHP and etc.) (over 20 years) 
○ Very strong Object Oriented Design/Architecture/Development skills 
○ Extensive experience with Financial and eCommerce related service and products in SaaS Models 
○ Strong MVVM, MVC architecture background for Desktop, WEB and mobile applications 
○ Mobile and Tablet Cross Platform design, manage and development 
○ Long time experience with Agile methodology using multiple tools and platforms (Scrum, TFS, Jira, 

Unit-Test/Task/Bugs/Review/Auto-Build/Release), TDD 
 

RECENT EXPERIENCES: 

Group Software Development Manager 

Intuit (TurboTax)                                                                                                             2014 (December) – Present 

    San Diego, California, USA 

● Building and managing multiple teams of on site and remote developers plus many matrixed team 
members, each team over 20+ people including product managers, quality engineers, experience 
designers, scrum masters and etc. 

● Responsible for planning, designing and implementing a replatforming/redesigning projects for major 
pieces of TurboTax from an old stack to new technology. The result so far from the current tax year show a 
successful transition with great results; more scalable system, opening up many services for a true SOA 
architecture, room to innovate and providing a much richer experience for our 30+ million customers. 

● Training and coaching engineering teams on the development and quality side for a better transitioning 
into the new technology stack with high quality deliveries including varieties of integrated builds with wide 
suites of Unit, Regression, Integration and Perf tests utilizing Java and open source technologies. 

● Directing/coaching the teams to build reusable modules that can be integrated into different systems and 
services outside of TurboTax domain. 

● Improving TurboTax response for supporting 400,000 simultaneous users logged in using the product 
hosted on the cloud with zero down time 

 
➢ Technologies used: Java, Node.JS, C++, JavaScript, React, Jenkins, Maven, AWS 

Cloud, XML, JSON, RESTful services, Saas, SOA, iOS, Android 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Director of Software Engineering 

OneRoof Energy                                                                                                                        2013 (August) – 2014 

    LA Jolla, California, USA 

● Built and managed an onsite team of over 20 developers and architects to design and implement multiple 
client facing and internal services using RESTful services, MVC, Angular, jQuery, HTML and CSS 

● Managed a team of developers and architect to design and implement a well-integrated sets of APIs for 
third party clients and our websites to help transitioning into a SaaS model 

● Managed the team to design, implement and migrate all the products and SDLC related applications, tools 
and databases to Microsoft Azure 

● Managed the engineering team to design, implement and release the first Solar website to allow 
homeowners shop and design their own solar systems (www.sunopps.com) 

● Worked with an offshore team to design and implement client facing mobile and tablet applications for iOS 
and android 

● Managed a team of DBAs and BI developers for all the database related work in MS SQL 2012 and BI 
reports, this included all the upgrade processes from older version of SQL all the way to Azure SQL 

● Implemented the agile process in the scrum methodology and integrated all the scrum processes with our 
TFS environment 

● Built up a QA team as well as defining all the required processes and workflows, and automated UI tests 
● Implemented a new SDLC cycle for developers to have a fully TTD based development with continuous 

build, unit and integration tests and auto deployment to Azure 
 

➢ Technologies used: RESTful services, C#, TFS, SQL Server, WPF, MVC, Java, 

JavaScript, iOS, Android, PHP, SSRS/SSIS, Azure, WCF, HTML, CSS, SaaS 

 

 

Senior Software Architect / Lead  

DP Technology                                                                                                             2012 (March) – 2013(August) 

   Camarillo, California, USA 

 

● Lead multiple teams to redesign the architecture of the company’s most innovative (CAM) Cloud-enabled 
product for multi-platform compatibility (Windows Desktop, iOS/android/WinRT (tablets) and WEB) and 
robustness. This included redesigning services, layers and modules and hands on coding/code-reviewing 
process to successfully achieve the requirement. As part of the redesign I also investigated and researched 
the best cloud options for the services and the backend modules and proposed AWS, with my direction the 
team quickly made the code compatible for deployment to cloud and we had it running on AWS. I also 
refactored the UI infrastructure to follow a state of the art reusable MVVM/MVC architecture, all the 
View-Models and Controllers are reused in all platforms, Windows WPF/WinRT, iOS and android. My job 
involved mentoring and educating the team on a weekly basis for a more professional design and coding 
techniques in a very efficient and up to date object oriented approaches utilizing the latest coding 
languages and variable technologies. I shifted the overall development workflow towards a very agile 
oriented environment and project managing techniques to maximize the efficiency of the R&D department. 
Designed and managed the ecommerce application for the company and implemented many components of 
the application. All above resulted into very highly satisfied clients and executives at the firm. 

 
➢ Technologies used: RESTful services, C#, C++, WPF, SQL Server, WCF, Xamarin, 

Cloud, XML 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Principal / Lead software engineer  

UNX LLC                                                                                                                                    2005 – 2012 (March) 

Burbank, California, USA 

 

● As a lead and principal software engineer/architect I helped UNX to design, implement and maintain 
several in house applications as well as selling technologies and products. These included but not limited 
to UNX Catalyst’s Marketplace (App Store) which I designed and implemented the back-end services 
utilizing WCF and C#, the SQL Server databases and led the team to implement the APIs required for the 
Marketplace forefront as well as a key role in designing and implementing Marketplace app in C# using 
WPF. 

● Led the team to develop libraries for real-time central monitoring applications with a rich WPF UI 
visualizing the whole trading platform in queryable and editable diagrams and grids. This allowed trading 
operators to interact with engines remotely. This was combined with an innovative central configuration 
infrastructure for all trading engines and Back office applications to allows modifying configurations 
real-time from both UI and scripting tools.  

● Designed and implemented multiple emulators and simulators including a graphical trading rules engine 
utilizing Microsoft Workflow to be used in the real-time trading environment or to test the back-end pieces 
with simulated data. Also a “Market Data simulator” and an “ECN simulator” for testing integrated 
trading platforms plus a visual and fully scriptable “playback system” for simulating and playing back 
data logs on more than 15 different trading engines including tactical, algorithmic and strategic 
application. Many of the above was with the involvement of cloud and virtual machine technologies. 

 
➢ Technologies used: Services, C#, C/C++, WPF, SQL, WCF, WMI, WF, MFC, Cloud, XML, VPC 

 

Software development manager  

ImageGrafix                                                                                                                                              1995 – 2005 

    Dubai, UAE 

 

● Designed and implemented the core of an enterprise wide office automation client/server application suite. 
Managed a team of over 40 developers/testers to develop, test and deploy all components. C/C++/Java, 
Multithreaded, Network, Client/Server, TCP/IP custom designed messaging, MFC UI, scriptable with VB 
and Java script, graphical workflows and forms. 

● Designed, developed and led the Dev. team to implement a Windows like platform for AutoCAD 12 running 
on MS-DOS; included new graphical device drivers, many graphical gadgets with Windows like GUI 
controls. C/C++/Assembly, custom made UI libraries. 

● Designed, managed and developed more than dozens other apps mostly with AutoCAD ARX and newer 
SDKs in C++ 
 

Software Engineer/Architect/Consultant (part time)  

Zag Chemie                                                                                                                                                1993 – 2003  

 
● For about ten years worked with the company as a main Architect and Consultant in both Hardware and 

Software field and helped to design, develop and manufacture a wide range of successful and highly 
popular  Medical/Chemical  related products being used in hospitals and laboratories for many years; this 
involved microcontrollers, A2Ds as well as embedded software and device drivers in  C/C++/Assembly. 

 

EDUCATION: 

● B.S.E.E Computer Hardware Engineering   
Azad University                                                                                                                              1992 – 1998 
 

 


